# DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICIAL CODE

# TITLE 38. EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS.

CHAPTER 19.
TEACHERS, SCHOOL OFFICERS, AND OTHER
EMPLOYEES IN GENERAL.

2001 Edition

#### DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA OFFICIAL CODE

## CHAPTER 19. TEACHERS, SCHOOL OFFICERS, AND OTHER EMPLOYEES IN GENERAL.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### Subchapter I. General.

- § 38-1901. Sexual discrimination; salary deductions; employment as clerk or librarian.
- § 38-1902. Installment payments to certain teachers.
- § 38-1903. Teachers in the Americanization schools; custodial staff.
- § 38-1904. Teaching vacancies.
- § 38-1905. Vocational education.
- § 38-1906. Classification of research assistants.
- § 38-1907. Employment of substitutes for engineer, janitor, laborer, fireman, or caretaker; salary deductions.
- § 38-1908. Heads of certain departments; compensation.
- § 38-1909. Employment of substitutes--Authorized; compensation.
- § 38-1910. Employment of substitutes--Retired teachers.

#### Subchapter II. Foreign Exchange Program.

- § 38-1921. Authorized; eligibility.
- § 38-1922. Payment of salary.
- § 38-1923. Assignment of foreign teachers; loyalty oath.

#### Subchapter III. Repealed Provisions.

- § 38-1941. Payment of salaries.[Repealed]
- § 38-1942. Head of Department of Military Science and Tactics; salary.[Repealed]
- § 38-1943. Rules for division of time and computation of pay for services. [Repealed]
- § 38-1944. Double salaries--School teachers and employees in District.[Repealed]
- § 38-1945. Double salaries--Custodial employees in District.[Repealed]
- § 38-1946. Leave with part pay authorized; limitations. [Repealed]
- § 38-1947. Report of person on leave; termination of leave. [Repealed]
- § 38-1948. Leave of absence for educational purposes--compensation of elementary and secondary school teachers. [Repealed]
- § 38-1949. Leave of absence for educational purposes--Compensation of other employees. [Repealed]
- § 38-1950. Leave of absence for educational purposes--Inclusion for promotion and retirement purposes.[Repealed]
- § 38-1951. Masculine pronoun construed to include female employees. [Repealed]
- § 38-1952. Sick and emergency leave. [Repealed]
- § 38-1953. Credit for cumulative leave on transfer or promotion. [Repealed]
- § 38-1954. Reinstatement after leave without pay granted.[Repealed]
- § 38-1955. Additional leave credits for service prior to July 1, 1949. [Repealed]
- § 38-1956. Maternity leave. [Repealed]
- § 38-1957. Additional leaves in emergencies.[Repealed]
- § 38-1958. Days of leave with pay defined.[Repealed]
- § 38-1959. Refund required for unearned advanced leave; exceptions.[Repealed]

- § 38-1960. Rules and regulations; definitions. [Repealed]
- § 38-1961. Regulation of vacation periods and annual leave. [Repealed]
- § 38-1962. Prior leave; promulgation of rules.[Repealed]
- § 38-1963. Salary schedule. [Repealed]
- § 38-1964. Eligibility requirements for appointment and promotion; definitions. [Repealed]
- § 38-1965. Probationary period. [Repealed]
- § 38-1966. Teaching certificates; renewals; rules and regulations. [Repealed]
- § 38-1967. Assignment of certain employees to salary classes. [Repealed]
- § 38-1968. Application of chapter; teacher-aide positions; initial assignment of school principals and periodic evaluation. [Repealed]
- § 38-1969. Assignment to service steps--method; promotions.[Repealed]
- § 38-1970. Assignment to service steps--New employees; adjustment of existing employees; military service; transfer from Board of Higher Education. [Repealed]
- § 38-1971. Probationary employees; salary increases; termination.[Repealed]
- § 38-1972. Temporary employees.[Repealed]
- § 38-1973. Promotions--groups A-1, B, C, and D; administrative errors. [Repealed]
- § 38-1974. Promotions--Higher-paid salary classes. [Repealed]
- § 38-1975. Evening, summer, and Americanization schools; salaries.[Repealed]
- § 38-1976. Appropriation for summer school salaries.[Repealed]
- § 38-1977. Method of salary payment. [Repealed]
- § 38-1978. Regulation of vacation and leave periods of certain employees. [Repealed]
- § 38-1979. Sick and emergency leave provisions applicable to certain employees. [Repealed]
- § 38-1980. Sabbatical leave provisions applicable to certain employees.[Repealed]
- § 38-1981. Foreign teacher exchange program applicable to certain employees. [Repealed]
- § 38-1982. Teacher retirement provisions applicable to certain employees. [Repealed]

# CHAPTER 19. TEACHERS, SCHOOL OFFICERS, AND OTHER EMPLOYEES IN GENERAL.

#### SUBCHAPTER I. GENERAL.

### § 38-1901. SEXUAL DISCRIMINATION; SALARY DEDUCTIONS; EMPLOYMENT AS CLERK OR LIBRARIAN.

In assigning salaries to teachers, no discrimination shall be made between male and female teachers employed in the same grade of school and performing a like class of duties; nor shall it be lawful to pay, or authorize or require to be paid, from any of the salaries of such teachers any portion or percentage thereof for the purpose of adding to salaries of higher or lower grades; and no such teacher shall be employed as, or required to discharge the duties of, a clerk or librarian.

(Sept. 1, 1916, 39 Stat. 695, ch. 433, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1001.

1973 Ed., § 31-608.

#### § 38-1902. INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS TO CERTAIN TEACHERS.

On and after July 1, 1943, the Board of Education is authorized to designate the months in which the 10 salary payments shall be made to teachers assigned to instruction in elementary science and school gardening, and in health, physical education, and playground activities.

(July 1, 1943, 57 Stat. 322, ch. 184, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1003.

1973 Ed., § 31-609a.

### § 38-1903. TEACHERS IN THE AMERICANIZATION SCHOOLS; CUSTODIAL STAFF.

- (a) Officers and teachers in the Americanization, evening, and summer schools may also be officers and teachers in the regular day schools.
- (b) Members of the custodial staff in the evening, summer, and Americanization schools may also be members of the custodial staff in the day schools.

(July 1, 1943, 57 Stat. 322, ch. 184, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1018.

#### § 38-1904. TEACHING VACANCIES.

Teaching vacancies which occur during any school year may be filled by the assignment of teachers of special subjects and teachers not now assigned to classroom instruction, and such teachers are hereby made eligible for such assignment without further examination.

(July 1, 1943, 57 Stat. 322, ch. 184, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1019.

1973 Ed., § 31-682.

#### § 38-1905. VOCATIONAL EDUCATION.

The Board of Education is authorized and empowered to establish occupational schools on the elementary school level for pupils not prepared to pursue vocational courses in the trade or vocational schools and also to carry on trade or vocational courses on the senior high school level or in senior high schools.

(Apr. 10, 1936, 49 Stat. 1194, ch. 175, § 4.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1004.

1973 Ed., § 31-614.

#### § 38-1906. CLASSIFICATION OF RESEARCH ASSISTANTS.

Research assistants shall be classified as teachers for payroll purposes and for retirement purposes.

(Apr. 5, 1939, 53 Stat. 568, ch. 39, § 4.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1006.

1973 Ed., § 31-623.

### § 38-1907. EMPLOYMENT OF SUBSTITUTES FOR ENGINEER, JANITOR, LABORER, FIREMAN, OR CARETAKER; SALARY DEDUCTIONS.

In the event of the absence of any engineer, assistant engineer, janitor, assistant janitor, laborer, fireman, or caretaker at any time during school sessions the Board of Education is hereby authorized to appoint a substitute, who shall be paid the salary of the position in which employed, and the amount paid to such substitute shall be deducted from the salary of the absent employee.

(Mar. 4, 1913, 37 Stat. 956, ch. 150, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1007.

1973 Ed., § 31-625.

#### § 38-1908. HEADS OF CERTAIN DEPARTMENTS; COMPENSATION.

From and after 10 days following August 28, 1958, there shall be only one person in charge of the following departments in the public school system of the District of Columbia: Art, business education, English, foreign languages, guidance and placement, history, home economics, industrial arts,

mathematics, military science and tactics, music, science, trade and industrial education, and health, physical education, athletics, and safety; except that in the case of persons reassigned pursuant to this section, nothing contained herein shall be construed to decrease the rate of compensation that any such person is receiving on the effective date of this section. If such person is placed in a lower salary class and the present salary of the incumbent falls between 2 step rates for the newly assigned class, he shall receive the higher of such rates. Whenever a department is established hereafter in the public school system of the District of Columbia there shall be but 1 person in charge of such department.

(Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1012, Pub. L. 85-838, § 3.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1017.

1973 Ed., § 31-680.

### § 38-1909. EMPLOYMENT OF SUBSTITUTES--AUTHORIZED; COMPENSATION.

The Board of Education is hereby authorized to employ substitute teachers and attendance officers for service during the absence of any teacher or attendance officer on leave with pay or on leave without pay and to fix the rate of compensation to be paid such substitutes.

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 843, ch. 686, § 6; Aug. 5, 1953, 67 Stat. 362, ch. 319, § 1; Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 530, ch. 569, title V, § 22; Oct. 2, 1972, 86 Stat. 760, Pub. L. 92-454, § 3.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1028.

1973 Ed., § 31-696.

#### § 38-1910. EMPLOYMENT OF SUBSTITUTES--RETIRED TEACHERS.

Persons who have retired as teachers under the provisions of subchapter I of Chapter 20 of this title; or subchapter II of Chapter 20 of this title; or subchapter III of Chapter 83 of Title 5, United States Code; may be employed as substitute teachers in the public schools of the District of Columbia when it is not practicable otherwise to secure qualified and competent persons. Any such persons granted temporary employment under authority of this section shall continue to receive their annuities during such employment and no deduction shall be made from the compensation of such persons for retirement benefits. The service rendered by such retired teachers employed as substitute teachers shall not be used to recompute their annuities.

(Apr. 24, 1958, 72 Stat. 98, Pub. L. 85-385, § 1.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1029.

1973 Ed., § 31-696a.

#### SUBCHAPTER II. FOREIGN EXCHANGE PROGRAM.

#### § 38-1921. AUTHORIZED; ELIGIBILITY.

- (a) The Board of Education of the District of Columbia is authorized to participate in the teacher foreign exchange program in cooperation with the United States Office of Education.
- (b) Any employee of the Board of Education of the District of Columbia who is subject to the provisions of the District of Columbia Teachers' Salary Act of 1955 shall, with the approval of the Board of Education, be eligible to participate in such program, and shall, if accepted for such foreign assignment, serve for a period not to exceed one calendar year, and shall, at the conclusion of such service, be returned to the position which he held before the exchange was effected; provided, that in any one calendar year not more than 10 such employees shall participate in such program.

(Sept. 28, 1950, 64 Stat. 1076, ch. 1091, § 1.)

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1033.

1973 Ed., § 31-699.

References in Text

"The District of Columbia Teachers' Salary Act of 1955," referred to in subsection (b) of this section, refers to the Act of August 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 521, ch. 569.

#### § 38-1922. PAYMENT OF SALARY.

The Board of Education of the District of Columbia is authorized to pay the full salary of the educational employee of said Board during the time such employee is performing teaching duties in a foreign country under such exchange program, in the same manner and to the same extent as if such educational employee were actually performing his teaching duties in his regularly assigned position in the public schools of the District of Columbia, and any such educational employee participating in such program shall, for purposes of promotion, computation of annual increment, computation of service for pension credit, including salary contributions to the pension fund, and leave of absence credits, be considered as performing teaching duties in the schools of the District of Columbia.

(Sept. 28, 1950, 64 Stat. 1077, ch. 1091, § 2.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1034.

1973 Ed., § 31-699a.

#### § 38-1923. ASSIGNMENT OF FOREIGN TEACHERS; LOYALTY OATH.

- (a) Each professionally qualified person from a foreign country exchanged under the provisions of this subchapter with an educational employee of the Board of Education of the District of Columbia shall during the period of such exchange serve as a substitute for the exchanged teacher and shall be assigned in the public schools of the District of Columbia as the Board of Education shall determine. Such exchange teacher shall serve without compensation for such service from the District of Columbia or any agency thereof; provided further, that the term of such assignment or exchange shall not exceed one calendar year.
- (b) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, any foreign teacher, instructor, or professor assigned to duties in the public schools of the District of Columbia under the provisions of this subchapter shall not be required to take an oath of office or any oath of allegiance or loyalty to the United States, but shall satisfy the Board of Education of the District of Columbia as to his personal, moral, and professional fitness to teach in the public schools of Washington, District of Columbia.

(Sept. 28, 1950, 64 Stat. 1077, ch. 1091, § 3.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1035.

1973 Ed., § 31-699b.

#### SUBCHAPTER III. REPEALED PROVISIONS.

#### § 38-1941. PAYMENT OF SALARIES.[REPEALED]

 $(May\ 26,\ 1908,\ 35\ Stat.\ 291,\ ch.\ 198,\ \S\ 1;\ June\ 30,\ 1970,\ 84\ Stat.\ 364,\ Pub.\ L.\ 91-297,\ title\ III,\ \S\ 304(a);\ Oct.\ 21,\ 1972,\ 86\ Stat.\ 1012,\ Pub.\ L.\ 92-518,\ title\ I,\ \S\ 104(a);\ May\ 10,\ 1989,\ D.C.\ Law\ 7-231,\ \S\ 30,\ 36\ DCR\ 492.)$ 

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1002.

1973 Ed., § 31-609.

Legislative History of Laws

Law 7-231 was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 7-586, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on November 29, 1988 and December 13, 1988, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on January 6, 1989, it was assigned Act No. 7-285 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review.

### § 38-1942. HEAD OF DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY SCIENCE AND TACTICS; SALARY.[REPEALED]

(July 29, 1946, 60 Stat. 708, ch. 693, § 1; May 10, 1989, D.C. Law 7-231, § 31, 36 DCR 492.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1005.

1973 Ed., § 31-622a.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 7-231, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1941.

### § 38-1943. RULES FOR DIVISION OF TIME AND COMPUTATION OF PAY FOR SERVICES.[REPEALED]

(May 26, 1908, 35 Stat. 291, ch. 198, § 1; June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 365, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 304(b); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1012, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 104(b); May 10, 1989, D.C. Law 7-231, § 32, 36 DCR 492.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1008.

1973 Ed., § 31-630.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 7-231, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1941.

### § 38-1944. DOUBLE SALARIES--SCHOOL TEACHERS AND EMPLOYEES IN DISTRICT.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 6, 1917, 40 Stat. 384, ch. 79, § 9; July 8, 1918, 40 Stat. 823, ch. 139, § 1; June 5, 1920, 41 Stat. 1017, ch. 253, § 1; Aug. 19, 1964, 78 Stat. 491, 493, Pub. L. 88-448, title IV, §§ 401(i), 402(a)(17), (18); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 15, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1009.

1973 Ed., § 31-631.

Legislative History of Laws

Law 4-78 was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 4-326, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on November 10, 1981 and November 24, 1981, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on December 15, 1981, it was assigned Act No. 4-126 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review.

### § 38-1945. DOUBLE SALARIES--CUSTODIAL EMPLOYEES IN DISTRICT.[REPEALED]

(July 1, 1942, 56 Stat. 467, ch. 467; Aug. 19, 1964, 78 Stat. 491, Pub. L. 88-448, title IV, § 401(k); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 16, 29 DCR 49.)

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1010.

1973 Ed., § 31-631a.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1946. LEAVE WITH PART PAY AUTHORIZED; LIMITATIONS.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 349, ch. 342, § 1; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1011.

1973 Ed., § 31-632.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1947. REPORT OF PERSON ON LEAVE; TERMINATION OF LEAVE.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 349, ch. 342, § 2; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1012.

1973 Ed., § 31-633.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1948. LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR EDUCATIONAL PURPOSES-COMPENSATION OF ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL TEACHERS.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 349, ch. 342, § 3; Aug. 21, 1964, 78 Stat. 584, Pub. L. 88-472, § 1; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1013.

1973 Ed., § 31-634.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1949. LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR EDUCATIONAL PURPOSES--COMPENSATION OF OTHER EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 349, ch. 342, § 4; Aug. 21, 1964, 78 Stat. 584, Pub. L. 88-472, § 2; Mar. 12, 1976, D.C. Law 1-53, § 2, 22 DCR 5132; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1014.

1973 Ed., § 31-635.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1950. LEAVE OF ABSENCE FOR EDUCATIONAL PURPOSES--INCLUSION FOR PROMOTION AND RETIREMENT PURPOSES.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 350, ch. 342, § 5; Aug. 21, 1964, 78 Stat. 585, Pub. L. 88-472, § 3; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1015.

1973 Ed., § 31-636.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1951. MASCULINE PRONOUN CONSTRUED TO INCLUDE FEMALE EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(June 12, 1940, 54 Stat. 350, ch. 342, § 6; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 17, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1016.

1973 Ed., § 31-637.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1952. SICK AND EMERGENCY LEAVE. [REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 842, ch. 686, § 1; Oct. 29, 1951, 65 Stat. 660, ch. 601, § 1; Dec. 18, 1967, 81 Stat. 659, Pub. L. 90-212, § 1(a); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 140, Pub. L. 90-319, § 5; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 18, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1020.

1973 Ed., § 31-691.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1953. CREDIT FOR CUMULATIVE LEAVE ON TRANSFER OR PROMOTION.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 29, 1951, 65 Stat. 660, ch. 601, § 4; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 21, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1021.

1973 Ed., § 31-691a.

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1954. REINSTATEMENT AFTER LEAVE WITHOUT PAY GRANTED.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 29, 1951, 65 Stat. 661, ch. 601, § 5; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 21, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1022.

1973 Ed., § 31-691b.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1955. ADDITIONAL LEAVE CREDITS FOR SERVICE PRIOR TO JULY 1, 1949. [REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 842, ch. 686, § 2; Oct. 29, 1951, 65 Stat. 660, ch. 601, § 2; Dec. 18, 1967, 81 Stat. 659, Pub. L. 90-212, § 1(b); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 18, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1023.

1973 Ed., § 31-692.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1956. MATERNITY LEAVE.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 843, ch. 686, § 3; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 18, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1024.

1973 Ed., § 31-693.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1957. ADDITIONAL LEAVES IN EMERGENCIES.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 843, ch. 686, § 4; Oct. 29, 1951, 65 Stat. 660, ch. 601, § 3; Dec. 18, 1967, 81 Stat. 659, Pub. L. 90-212, § 1(c); Feb. 19, 1976, D.C. Law 1-47, § 2, 22 DCR 4683; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 18, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1025.

1973 Ed., § 31-694.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1958. DAYS OF LEAVE WITH PAY DEFINED.[REPEALED]

(Dec. 20, 1950, 64 Stat. 1114, ch. 1141, § 1; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 19, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1026.

1973 Ed., § 31-694a.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

### § 38-1959. REFUND REQUIRED FOR UNEARNED ADVANCED LEAVE; EXCEPTIONS.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 843, ch. 686, § 5; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 18, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1027.

1973 Ed., § 31-695.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1960. RULES AND REGULATIONS; DEFINITIONS.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 13, 1949, 63 Stat. 843, ch. 686, § 7; May 10, 1989, D.C. Law 7-231, § 33, 36 DCR 492.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1030.

1973 Ed., § 31-697.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 7-231, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1941.

### § 38-1961. REGULATION OF VACATION PERIODS AND ANNUAL LEAVE.[REPEALED]

(Mar. 5, 1952, 66 Stat. 14, ch. 81, § 1; Mar. 16, 1981, D.C. Law 4-78, § 20, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1031.

1973 Ed., § 31-698.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1962. PRIOR LEAVE; PROMULGATION OF RULES.[REPEALED]

(Mar. 5, 1952, ch. 81, § 2; Aug. 5, 1953, 67 Stat. 362, ch. 320, § 1; Mar. 16, 1981, D.C. Law 4-78, § 20, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1032.

1973 Ed., § 31-698a.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1944.

#### § 38-1963. SALARY SCHEDULE.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 521, ch. 569, title I, § 1; July 25, 1958, 72 Stat. 414, Pub. L. 85-552, § 1; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1004, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Sept. 13, 1960, 74 Stat. 913, Pub. L. 87-773, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1229, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(1); Aug. 14, 1964, 78 Stat. 431, Pub. L. 88-426, title III, § 306(i)(5); Sept. 2, 1964, 78 Stat. 882, Pub. L. 88-575, title II, § 201(1); Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1594, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(1); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 132, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(1); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 135, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(2); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 358, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(1); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1005, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 102(a); Sept. 3, 1974, 88 Stat. 1042, Pub. L. 93-407, title II, § 202(1), (2); Jan. 3, 1975, 88 Stat. 2175, Pub. L. 93-635, §§ 4, 5; Mar. 29, 1977, D.C. Law 1-90, § 2(1), (2), 23 DCR 9532b; May 18, 1977, D.C. Law 2-1, § 2(a), 23 DCR 9698; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1101.

1973 Ed., § 31-1501.

Legislative History of Laws

Law 4-78 was introduced in Council and assigned Bill No. 4-326, which was referred to the Committee of the Whole. The Bill was adopted on first and second readings on November 10, 1981 and November 24, 1981, respectively. Signed by the Mayor on December 15, 1981, it was assigned Act No. 4-126 and transmitted to both Houses of Congress for its review.

### § 38-1964. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR APPOINTMENT AND PROMOTION; DEFINITIONS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 524, ch. 569, title II, § 3; June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 362, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(3); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1111.

1973 Ed., § 31-1512.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

#### § 38-1965. PROBATIONARY PERIOD.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 524, ch. 569, title II, § 3; June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 362, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(3); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1112.

1973 Ed., § 31-1512.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1966. TEACHING CERTIFICATES; RENEWALS; RULES AND REGULATIONS.[REPEALED]

(Sept. 3, 1974, 88 Stat. 1049, Pub. L. 93-407, title II, § 204; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 12, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1113.

1973 Ed., § 31-1513.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1967. ASSIGNMENT OF CERTAIN EMPLOYEES TO SALARY CLASSES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 524, ch. 569, title III, § 4; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1007, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1232, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(4); Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1598, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(3); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 362, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(4); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1009, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(2); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1121.

1973 Ed., § 31-1521.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

## § 38-1968. APPLICATION OF CHAPTER; TEACHER-AIDE POSITIONS; INITIAL ASSIGNMENT OF SCHOOL PRINCIPALS AND PERIODIC EVALUATION.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 525, ch. 569, title III, § 5; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1009, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1598, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(4); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 139, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(8); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 362, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(5); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1010, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(3); Mar. 3, 1979, D.C. Law 2-139, § 3204(e), 25 DCR 5740; Mar. 5, 1981, D.C. Law 3-133, § 31(b), 27 DCR 4417; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1122.

1973 Ed., § 31-1522.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

#### § 38-1969. ASSIGNMENT TO SERVICE STEPS--METHOD; PROMOTIONS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 526, ch. 569, title IV, § 6; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1009, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1233, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(5), (6); Sept. 2, 1964, 78 Stat. 885, Pub. L. 78-885, title II, § 201(2); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 362, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(6), (7); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1131.

1973 Ed., § 31-1531.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

#### § 38-1970. ASSIGNMENT TO SERVICE STEPS--NEW EMPLOYEES; ADJUSTMENT OF EXISTING EMPLOYEES; MILITARY SERVICE; TRANSFER FROM BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 527, ch. 569, title IV, § 7; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1010, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1234, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(7); Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1599, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(5); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 138, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(3); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1010, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(4), title II, § 203(a); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1132.

1973 Ed., § 31-1532.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1971. PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES; SALARY INCREASES; TERMINATION.[REPEALED]

(May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 138, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(4); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1133.

1973 Ed., § 31-1533.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

#### § 38-1972. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 528, ch. 569, title IV, § 9; Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1600, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(6); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1134.

1973 Ed., § 31-1534.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1973. PROMOTIONS--GROUPS A-1, B, C, AND D; ADMINISTRATIVE ERRORS.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 528, ch. 569, title IV, § 10; Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1601, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(7); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 138, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(5); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 363, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(8); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(5); Mar. 29, 1977, D.C. Law 1-90, § 2(4), 23 DCR 9532b; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1135.

1973 Ed., § 31-1535.

Legislative History of Laws

#### § 38-1974. PROMOTIONS--HIGHER-PAID SALARY CLASSES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 528, ch. 569, title IV, § 11; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1234, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(11); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1136.

1973 Ed., § 31-1536.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1975. EVENING, SUMMER, AND AMERICANIZATION SCHOOLS; SALARIES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 13; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1234, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(10), (11); Sept. 2, 1964, 78 Stat. 886, Pub. L. 88-875, title II, § 201(3); Nov. 13, 1966, 80 Stat. 1601, Pub. L. 89-810, title II, § 202(8); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 138, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(6); May 27, 1968, 82 Stat. 139, Pub. L. 90-319, § 2(7); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 363, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(9), (10); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1008, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, §§ 102(b), 103(6); Sept. 3, 1974, 88 Stat. 1049, Pub. L. 93-407, title II, § 202(3), (4); Jan. 3, 1975, 88 Stat. 2177, Pub. L. 93-635, § 11; Mar. 29, 1977, D.C. Law 1-90, § 2(5), 23 DCR 9523b; May 18, 1977, D.C. Law 2-1, § 2(b), 23 DCR 9698; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1141.

1973 Ed., § 31-1542.

Emergency Act Amendments

For temporary amendment of section, see § 206(b) of the Police Officers, Fire Fighters, and Teachers Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan and Fiscal Year 1998 Revised Budget Support Act of 1997 Technical Amendments Emergency Act of 1998 (D.C. Act 12-351, May 20, 1998, 45 DCR 3673), and § 206(b) of the Police Officers, Fire Fighters, and Teachers Retirement Benefit Replacement Plan and Fiscal Year 1998 Revised Budget Support Act of 1997 Technical Amendments Congressional Review Emergency Act of 1998 (D.C. Act 12-432, August 6, 1998, 45 DCR 5920).

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1976. APPROPRIATION FOR SUMMER SCHOOL SALARIES.[REPEALED]

(Oct. 26, 1973, 87 Stat. 508, Pub. L. 93-140, § 22; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 13, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1142.

1973 Ed., § 31-1542a.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

#### § 38-1977. METHOD OF SALARY PAYMENT. [REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 14; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24,

1962, 76 Stat. 1235, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(12); June 30, 1970, 84 Stat. 364, Pub. L. 91-297, title III, § 302(11); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(7); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1143.

1973 Ed., § 31-1543.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1978. REGULATION OF VACATION AND LEAVE PERIODS OF CERTAIN EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 15; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1012, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1235, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(13); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(8); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1144.

1973 Ed., § 31-1544.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1979. SICK AND EMERGENCY LEAVE PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CERTAIN EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 16; Aug. 28, 1958, 72 Stat. 1012, Pub. L. 85-838, § 1; Oct. 24, 1962, 76 Stat. 1235, Pub. L. 87-881, title I, § 101(14); Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1011, Pub. L. 92-518, title I, § 103(9); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1145.

1973 Ed., § 31-1545.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1980. SABBATICAL LEAVE PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CERTAIN EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 17; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1146.

1973 Ed., § 31-1546.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1981. FOREIGN TEACHER EXCHANGE PROGRAM APPLICABLE TO CERTAIN EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V, § 18; Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78, § 11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1147.

1973 Ed., § 31-1547.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.

### § 38-1982. TEACHER RETIREMENT PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CERTAIN EMPLOYEES.[REPEALED]

(Aug. 5, 1955, 69 Stat. 529, ch. 569, title V,  $\S$  19; Oct. 21, 1972, 86 Stat. 1013, Pub. L. 92-518, title II,  $\S$  202(b); Mar. 16, 1982, D.C. Law 4-78,  $\S$  11, 29 DCR 49.)

HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES

Prior Codifications

1981 Ed., § 31-1148.

1973 Ed., § 31-1548.

Legislative History of Laws

For legislative history of D.C. Law 4-78, see Historical and Statutory Notes following § 38-1963.